INDIANA STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

To: Indiana State Board of Education

From: Chad E. Ranney, General Counsel

Date: July 13,2022

RE: Approval of Governing Body Change — Goshen Community Schools

Recommendation: Approve the proposed governing body plan change

Pursuant to IC 20-23-8, the Board of School Trustees of Goshen Community Schools (“Goshen’)
adopted a resolution to initiate a change to Goshen’s governing body plan. After adopting the
resolution, Goshen submitted the attached materials for the Indiana State Board of Education’s

(“Board”) review and consideration, in accordance with the requirements set forth in IC 20-23-8-
15.

Indiana Department of Education (“Department”) staff reviewed the attached material and
determined that Goshen’s plan and the manner in which it was initiated satisfy the requirements
set forth in IC 20-23-8. As such, Goshen’s new governing body plan is recommended for approval.

* 143 W. Market Street, Suite 500 = Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 =
= (317) 232-2000 = www.in.gov/sboe =



GOSHEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
RESOLUTION NO. DCLXXXV (785)

APPROVAL OF PLAN FOR REAPPORTIONMENT RESOLUTION

Be, and it is hereby, RESOLVED by the Board of Scheol Trustees of Goshen Community
Schools that the following plan for the constitution for the Board of School Trustees of Goshen
Community Schools be published, referred to the State Board of Education for review and
adopted, all in accord with the provisions of Chapter 8 of Article 23, Title 20 of the Indiana Code.

Dated this 24" day of January, 2022,
Signed:

%OAM%J

add Weddell, President

Mario Garber, Vice President

10y
g

Eogeuiﬁ\l afmgel §cé/

Hi
José Blizalde, Miefaber

Amenda Qualls, Member

wa\ M\ﬁw\

- Allan Kauffiman, Mémber
l

L7
I\%f%amghez’slohnch Member




CONSTITUTION
OF
THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
OF
GOSHEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

The following plan shall determine the manner in which the Board of School Trustees of
Goshen Community Schools shall be constituted:

I. NUMBER OF MEMBERS

A. The number of members of the Board of School Trustees, as the Governing Body of
Goshen Community Schools, shall be seven (7), elected on a nonpartisan basis.

B. Three (3) of the members shall be at-large members, elected by all the voters of the
school corporation, and four (4) of the members shall be election district members, each residing in
an election district from which he or she is elected by voters residing in that same election district.
The four (4) election districts of Goshen Community Schools shall be designated as Districts 1, 2, 3
and 4.

District 1 shall consist of Elkhart Township precincts numbered 1, 2, 6, 7,
10 and 11 as the same have been established prior to the 2022 general election in
accord with Ind. Code § 3-11-1.5-38 and Ordinance Number 2011-372 of The
Board of Commissioners of Elkhart County, Indiana.

District 2 shall consist-of Elkhart Township precincts numbered 3, 4, 8 and
13 as the same have been so established.

District 3 shall consist of Elkhart Township precincts numbered 12, 14, 15,
19, 20 and 21 as the same have been so established.

District 4 shall consist of Elkhart Township precmcts numbered 5,9, 16,17
and 18 as the same liave been so established.
II. CANDIDATES FOR ELECTORAL DISTRICT POSITIONS ON SCHOOL BOARD
ELIGIBLE VOTERS

Whenever a candidate runs for one of the election district positions on the school board, the
following applies:

A. Anindividual who runs for one of the election district positions on the school board
must reside within that election districtf




B. Upon filing an intention to run for a position on the school board, the candidate must
specify that the candidate is running for an election district position.

C. Only eligible voters residing in the candidate's election district may vote for the
candidate,

D. The candidate who receives the greatest number of votes in the candidate's election
district will win the election in that district.
III. CANDIDATES FOR AT-LARGE POSITIONS; ELIGIBLE VOTERS

Whenever a candidate runs for one of the at-large positions on the school board, the following
applies: ‘ '

A. Anindividual who runs for one of the at-large positions on the school board must reside
within the boundaries of the school corporation.

B. Upon filing an intention to run for a position on the school board, the candidate must
specity that the candidate is running for an at-large position.

C. Eligible voters from all districts may vote for the candidate.

D. The candidates who receive the greatest number of votes win the available at-large
positions. '

IV. ELECTION PROCEDURES AND TERMS

A. Two (2) at-large members of the school board shall be elected at the general elections
held in November, 2022, and in November of every fourth year thereafter.

B. One (1) at-large member of the school board shall be elected at the general elections
held in November, 2024, and in November of every fourth year thereafter.

C. The District 1 and District 3 electoral district members of the school board shall be
clected at the general elections held in November, 2022, and in November of every fourth year
thereafter.

D. The District 2 and District 4 electoral district members of the school board shall be
clected at the general elections held in November, 2024, and in November of every fourth year
thereafter.

E. The terms of members of the school board shall run from January 1 in the year
following election to December 31 of the fourth year thereafter.



F. School board elections shall be held at each general election and shall be conducted in
accordance with the requirements of Indiana general election law and school board election law;
however, in the event of a conflict, the school board member election law shall prevail.

V. BOARD MEMBERS

A. Vacancies on the Board shall be filled temporarily by the Board. A member chosen to
fill a vacancy shall hold office for the remainder of the unexpired term. A board member chosen by
the Board to fill an election district vacancy shall reside in the District of the school corporation for
which he or she is chosen to represent. A board member chosen to fill an at-large vacancy may
reside anywhere in the school corporation. If there is a tie vote, or the Board fails to fill the vacancy
in thirty (30) days, then the judge of the Elkhart Circuit Court shall fill the vacancy for the
unexpired term. ‘

B. Board members shall have resided in the school corporation for at least one (1) year prior
to taking office. Board members must be at least twenty-one (21) years of age at the time of taking
office, Pursuant to Ind. Code § 20-26-4-11, an individual who is employed as a teacher, as defined
in Ind. Code § 20-18-2-22, or as a noncertificated employee, as defined in Ind. Code § 20-29-2-11,
of the school corporation may not be a member of the governing body of the school corporation.

C. Board members shall be compensated in an amount determined by the Board but not in
an amount exceeding that set by the Indiana General Assembly at Ind. Code § 20-26-4-7.

VI EFFECTIVE DATE

This plan shall be effective on January 10, 2022,



GOSHEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
- ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

Excerpts from the Minutes of the Board of Education-Regular Meeting
Monday, January 24, 2022

The Regular Meeting of the Board of School Trustees of Goshen Community Schools was held
on Monday, January 24, 2022, 6:00 p.m. at Goshen Community Schools Administration Center,
613 E. Purl St., Goshen, IN. Board President Bradd Weddell presided, and Mrs. Teri McCrindle
recorded the minutes. Other board members present were Secretary Roger Nafziger and
members Mr. Jose Elizalde, Mr. Allan Kauffman, and Mrs, Maria Sanchez Schirch. Attending
via Zoom was Vice President Mario Garber and absent was member Ms. Amanda

Qualls. Administrators present were Superintendent Dr. Steven Hope, Associate Superintendent
Dr. Alan Metcalfe, Assistant Superintendent Mus. Lori Line, Assistant Superintendent Mrs.
Tracey Noe, and Chief Finance Officer Dr. Robert Evans. Also in aitendance: Director of Digital
Media and Marketing Mrs. Megan Eichorn, Director of Digital Media and Marketing Mrs. Lori
Martin, GHS Principal Ms. Cathleen DeMeyer, GJHS Principal Mrs. Jan Baker, Model Principal
Mrs. Tami Hicks, GEA Co-President Mr. Hank Moore and the Goshen News was the media in
attendance.

[Among other proceedings had and actions taken were the following}:

Action Items:
Action: 4.1 Redistricting and Resolution 785 (Weddell)

Mz, Weddell reminded everyone the importance of redistricting the four elective districts for
board members. As the population in Elkhart Township has changed, it is required to have a
better balance to meet the statute governed by the state of Indiana. After further discussion and
looking over all three options, he believed that Option 1 was going to be the best choice. Mr.
Kauffman motioned to go with Option 1 as Mz, Nafziger second the motion. Mr. Nafziger
reiterated that it was a difficult task finding many options, he tried and finds the best choice is
Option 1 as well, Mr. Kauffiman thanked Mr, Weddell for all his work on coming to these
conclusions. Approval of using Option 1 and approving Resolution 785 passed with a vote of
6/0.

Adjournment:

As there was no further business to come before the Board, the meeting wassadj ourned at 6:18
p.m.




CERTIFICATE OF THE SECRETARY
: OF THE
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
GOSHEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

1, Roger Nafziger, hereby certify that [ am the duly elected, qualified and acting Secretary
of the Board of School Trustees of Goshen Conmmunity Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and
that the foregoing excerpts from the minutes of the meeting of the Board of School Trustees held
on Monday, January 24, 2022, are true and accurate copies of portions of those minutes as
approved by the Board of School Trustees.

Dated L gorcd. /R, 3O AN

P

VY] i

Réger Ngfziger, Secrgtéﬁf v Q
Board of School Trustees
Goshen Communily Schools




Proof of Publication

COPY

STATE OF INDIANA, ,
_ ElkhartCounty, }osE

NOTICE OF REAPPORTIONMENT
AND RECONSTITUTION OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TAHUSTEES

Ad# 1756181

, i ,  ENNEWS.is a dally
Al its regular meeting on Jaauary 24, 2022, the Board of Schoal Trustees approved by resolution the following:

‘ ~ CONSTITUTION blishad in the City of
f THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
OF

GOSHEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

Tha following pian shall determine the manner ir which the Board of School Trustess of Goshen Communiy 1Seculive week as follows:
Schools shall be constituted:

. NUMBER OF MEMBERS -
‘A Tre number of members of the Board of School Trustees, as ihe Governing Body of Goshen Cemmunity
Schools, shall be seven (7), elecied on a nonpartisan basis.

at the annexed true copy

B. Threa {3) of the members shali be at-large members, elected by all the volers of lhe schoo! cerporation, and
four (4} of the members shalt be sleclion district members, each residing in an election dislrict from which he or
she is elecled by volers residing In that same election district. The tfour (4} election districts of Goshen Gemmunity
Scheols shall be designated as Distriets 1, 2, 3and 4, )

District # shall consist of Elkhart Township precincts numbered 1, 2, 8, 7, 10 and 11 as the same have January 31, 2022
been established prior o the 2022 general eleclion in accord with Ind. Code § 3-11-1.5-38 and
Ordinance Number 2011-372 of The Board of Commissioners of Elihari County, Indiana.

District 2 shall consist of Elihart Township precincls numbered 3, 4, B and 13 as the same have been
50 established,

District 3 shall conslst of Elkhart Township precincts numbered 12, 14, 1%, 18, 20 and 21 as the same
have been so eslablished.

Dislrict 4 shall consist of Elithart Township precincls numbered 5, 9, 16, 17 and 18 as lhe same have been
so established. .

i, CANDIDATES FOR ELECTORAL DISTRICT POSITIONS ON SCHOOL BOARD; ELIGIBLE VOTERS
Whanever a candidale runs for one of the slection district positions on the school board, the following applies:

A An Individual who nuns for ane of the election district posilions on the school board must reside within that
eleclion district, ’

B, Upon filing an intention o run for a position on the schoo! board, the candldale must specily that the
candidate is running for an election disticl position. - .

C. Only elighle voters residing In the candidate’s electior: district may vote for the candidate.

D. The candidate who receives the greatest number of voles in the candidate’s eieclion disirict will win the

eleclion In that district,
I, CANDIDATES FOR AT-LARGE POSITIONS; ELIGIBLE VOTERS - éﬁ
Whenever a candidale runs for one of the at-large posttions on 1he school board, the following applies: {5;

[

A, An individual who runs for one of |he atlarge positions on the school board must reside within the [ijg
boundaries of the schoo! corporation, .

B, Upon fillng an intention fo run for a position on the school board, the candidate must specify that the
candidaie is running for an ai-large peskion. ’

C. Eligible volers from afl distdicts may vote for the candidate. '
il 75 7Ol Y e January 31’ 2022
D. The candidates who recelve the graalest number of voles win the avaiiable at-large positions.
IV. ELECTION PROCEDURES AND TERMS

A, Two (2) al-largé members of the school board shall be elected at the general slections held in November,
2022, and in November of avery fourth year thereafter. .

v
B. Cne {1) at-large member of the school board shall be elecled al he general elections held in November, #} /
e of

L)

‘ il Aedp s g
C. The District 1 and District 3 elecloral district members of the school board shall be elected at the general o T 7 {\_lyt?r'y Public
[]

elections held in November, 2022, and in Novermnber of every fourth year thereafler,

2024, and in November of every fourlh year thereafter,

4

D. The District 2 and District 4 efecloral disirict members of the schoot board shall be elected at the general
efections held in November, 2024, and in November of avery fourth year thereatter.

E. The lerms of mambars of the school board shall run from danuary 1 in the year following election to 1misslon expires Fsbruary 04, 2027

December 31 of the lourih year thereafter, Commission # NPG718334
F. School board elestions shall be held at each general sfaction and shall be condueled in accordance with the
requirements of Indiana generat electicn law and school board elsction law; however, in the event of & confiicl, the A\
schoal board member elaction law shall prevatt, \\\\‘ < "z,/
S Sty Z
V. BOARD MEMBERS ARG %Og’g
A. Vacancles on the Board shali be fillsd temporarlly 5y the Board. A member chosen to flll a vacancy shall hold 3%, 0 St WA
office for the remainder of the unexpired term. A board member chosen by the Board o fill an electlon distict =5 g* @;..j) z
vacancy shall reside in the Districl of the schoot corporation for which he or she 15 chosen io represent, A board .0 y =
meamber chosen to iil an at-large vacancy may reside anywhare in the schoo! corperation. i there is a tie vote, or = T’(:, i &
the Board falls 1o fill the vacancy In thirty (30) days, then the judge of the Elkhart Circuit Court shafl fill the vacancy = L CONMISSON2 NRG7ieassf o T
for the unexgired term. T e s - - .- o . X=Xy yomy S 3
. = ? . NOTARYSZAL - ¢ Z
y 3
B. Board members shall have reslded in tha school corporation for at least one (1) year prior 1o taking offics, ?;.'8" R AN ~\\\Q§
Board members must be al least twenly-oneém} years of age at the lime of taking office, Pursuani io ind. Gode § '9,, @U N @( RS
20-26-4-11, an individual whe is employed as a leacher, as defined in Ind, Code § 20-18-2-22, or as a ey , Q STPA \\\\\
- noncertificaled employss, as defined In Ind. Gode § 20-29-2-11, of the school corporation may not be a member of ity st

the governing body of the schoal corporation.

C. Board members shall be compensated In an amount determined by the Board but not in an amount
exceeding that set by lhe Indlana Genaral Assembly al Ind. Code § 20-26-4-7,

VI, EFFECTIVE DATE
This plan shall be efective on January 24, 2022.

Not tater than one hundred twenl?( é1 20) days after publication of thls notice, voters of the school corporation
may in accord with ihe provisions of Ind. Code § 20-23-8-14 file with the Clerk of the Eihart Gircuit Court a petition
protesting the plan approved by the Board or a pelition submitting an alternalive pian.

Roger Nafziger, Secretary
Board of School Trustees .
Goshen Community Schoals

January 31 hspaxlp




T - . - A da P
Proof of Publication
COPY '
Ad¥ 1758181 STATE OF INDIANA, .
} Elkhart County, } oss
ﬁ,@én—&ﬁ - 7”-"_“"'“ e LU UD DELUR cyel yul

in Romo (G) dec, Kader Rbgeré
J — Alex Parga (G) dec. Hunter

7-0. 170 — Markus VanderZwaag, -

Eveler (Nry 10-7. 182 — Connor
nned Brody Streeter (Nr) 141, 195
staneda (G) dec. David Albaugh

~Travls Henke {Nr) dec. Breckan

{. 285 — Lance Army (C} dec.
{NW) 2-1.

inds; Kadeii Long -
iai champion) -

inds: Trey Tobias

af champion)-

Inds: Isaac

in (sectional

on}

mds: Mason

ourth at sectional}

{12 from Plyiouth

inds: Kaleb
(sectional

an)

inds; Noah Wolf

| at secticnal)
Inds: Gaige Boyd
it sectional)

inds: Dylan Tom
al champion)
inds: Logan

an (second at

aly

nds: Hunter Miller
sectional)

Inds: Ethan

iez (sectional

an)

inds: Carson Nine
it sectional)

inds: Gavin
(second at

al)

inds: Cameron
edsy € Bruer

nelodiod |00Yos

now® ue Ul jou 11q precd am_.ﬁq pauy

y 1aquuBlI'E 8¢ jou few yopelo
‘Ze-e- 8l apcd

o gén%?ng ‘aoijo Bupyey jo aw

sopd Jesh (L) 8uo 1591 12 2

apey Ul 013
soiro Eunie) O

_ here. Bat whenIwasup

-Zone” ;
Because of the imp
ments NorthWood

Hawkins was voted a
swimming NLC eoach
year by her peers,

- - "It's heen a season; It
has,” Hawkins said. “Ij
ups-and-downs, but {
just the icing on the of
shows me that the kid
putthe workinand earr:L

NORTHRIDGE |

was published in said newspaper

On the day of

- block, Twasjust getting) | . 4.1y sworn, on cath say that THE GOSHEN NEWS is a daily

newspaper of general circulation, printed and publisihed in the City of

throughout the se Goshen, in the County and State of aforesaid; that the annexed true copy

one . consecutive week as follows:

January 31, 2022

FINISHES SECONL
Although the RaidejE

REDHAWE

CONTINUED FROM

Penn went on a 15-0 T
featured baskets from B
Gatete, Wojciechows]
junior Joey Garwood.

Wohlford would use
ple timeouts during th
guarter to try to slow
Penn’s offensive attaclg,
the end of the first eigh
utes, the Kingsmen w
pace to put 112 points.
scoreboard.

“That’s just a really
team that has a lot ol
said Wohlford of Penn
then you add the fact th!
have a Division I point
and another college |
playing along side him
really difficult, j

“Tt’s hard for usto re;
any of that. We also |
last night, so we werer

to_enend e tam o~ fate

‘ueld BANEUISNE Ve Bupwgns L

ey AU JO DL 9
ypad 8 WO l!mla!al 1;'0‘4;1; on ganou S

i Bl 18
Lliq“tuc.q]iezm_zqnui I,

) -p-G7-0T § 9POD PULL
b gzwzaxep junouiE .

‘Ut U paujisp SB 1ByoBt
e i oy} 1 ebe jo !
0} UOEICCIo

i

100 [0040s YL O ‘Li-g-6e-. .

(

Subscribed and sworn befere me this day of

January 31, 2022

o/ .

Y/ i

Y Vg7
Uit R Pl g

la S. Kulczaf
Angela {?

Nofary Public
i

My commission expires February 04, 2027

Commission # NP0718334

Wy

ty
22
S Y
' "/
2,

LT

N NOTARYSZAL 4

........ g
% f,rga :ST “’Q\\\\\\
g




man 8(22)0]28 [

ge BEM!B [ 45

AUDITOR

Auditor’s Certificate of No Precinct
Changes in Elkhart Township
of Elkhart County, Indiana
Due to the 2020 Decennial Census

I, Patricia A. Pickens, hereby certify that | am the dule elected, qualified and acting Auditor of
Elkhart County, Indiana, that no changes in the boundaries of the precincts in Elkhart Township of
Elkhart County, Indiana, were made as a result of the 2020 Decennial Census, and that the boundaries of
the Goshen Community Schools district are coterminous with the boundaries of Elkhart Township of
Elkhart County, Indiana.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,;i have thereunto set my hand and the Seal of the Commissioners of
Elkhart County, Indiana, this .2 /8 day of May, 2022,

[

T

(SEAL) O47,%, /3
e,

Tl

f R ‘ Faliiese _ é o /Lﬁ,kﬂu )

- T

L LA Patricia A. Pickens, Auditor
g =i E Elkhart County, Indiana
- \v-‘rl . N -

e T e mt———————__]
117 N. 280 St Rm 203 Goshen, IN 46526 - 574-535-6719




Clerk's Certificate of No Protest Petitions
and No Petitions Submitting Alternative Plans

I, Christopher Anderson, hereby certify that I am the duly elected, qualified and acting
Clerk of the Circuit Court of Elkhart County, Indiana, and that from and including January 31,
2022, to the date of this certificate no petitions protesting any plan for the constitution of the
Board of School Trustees of Goshen Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and no
petition submitting an alternate plan for the constitution of said Board has been fited with the
Clerk of the Circuit Court of Elkhart County, Indiana.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my, hand and affixed the Seal of said
Court at the City of Goshen, Indiana, this st day of QMJv , 2022,

(“ Sowﬂui\/\w-.z A,m,cl VSO,

Chfistopher Anderson, Clerk, .

\\QJ>. o
A Elihart Circuit Court
£ "'. . 69, \ .
""g." 3 {h\!’!«x ’7\ :\:»‘“
2 LT il
A_";_-V/-.'. —"-\:_‘*-‘A; ?\ . \{;r)_:
. 'OLD'--‘. '} C’J ¢




Certificate of Transeript and of No Protest Petitions
and No Petitions Submitting Alternative Plans
by the President of the Board of School Trustees,

Goshen Community Schools

I, Bradd Weddell, hereby certify that I am the duly elected, qualified and acting President
of the Board of School Trustees of Goshen Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and that
the annexed and foregoing transeript contains true and correct copies of the proceedings relative to
the reconstitution the Board of School Trustees of Goshen Community Schools commenced by the
passage of Resolution No. DCCLXXXYV (785) by the Board of School Trustees of Goshen
Community Schools on January 24, 2022. Only relevant portions of some documents are included
in this transcript as indicated in the Table of Contents.

I further certify that no petition protesting any plan and no petition submitting an
alternative plan has been filed with the Board of School Trustees as of the date of this certificate.

Dated this & od day of June, 2022.

(SEAL)

S A LU0

radd Weddell, President
Board of School Trustees,
Goshen Community Schools




	Approval of Gov Body Change - Goshen Community Schools - Memo to Board.pdf
	2022.01.24_ResolutionNoDCLXXXV-785_PlanApproval.pdf
	2022.01.24_SchoolMeetingMinutes_GoshenCS.pdf
	2022.01.31_GoshenNewsProofOfPub.pdf
	2022.05.31_AuditorsCertificateOfNoPrecinctChanges.pdf
	2022.06.01_ClerksCertificateOfNoProtestPetitions.pdf

